




Zoning Board of Adjustments 
October 6, 2021 Meeting Minutes 

 

Zoning Board of Adjustments Minutes  October 6, 2021 Page 1 of 4 
 

The City of Bastrop Zoning Board of Adjustments met Tuesday, October 6, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. in 
the Council Chambers located at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas 78602.  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
  
Scot Robichaud called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.   
 
Gary Moss   Present 
Scot Robichaud Present 
Jeff Haladyna   Present 
Richard Smarzik Present  
Scott Long  Present 
 
2. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
There were no comments from citizens.  
 
3. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION  
 

3A.  Introduction of new Board member Scott Long. 

The Board welcomed Scott Long.  
 

3B.   Consider action to appoint board officers for the Zoning Board of Adjustments. 

Gary Moss made a motion to appoint Scot Robichaud as Chair. Richard Smarzik seconded, and 
the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Gary Moss made a motion to appoint Scott Long as Vice-Chair. Richard Smarzik seconded, and 
the motion carried unanimously.  
 

3C.   Consider action to approve meeting minutes from the September 7, 2021 Zoning Board 
of Adjustment Meeting. 

Richard Smarzik made a motion to approve the September 7, 2021 Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Meeting Minutes. Gary Moss seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously.  

 
3D. Public hearing and consider action on an appeal of a Grandfathered Development 

Status Determination and request for a variance to be exempt from the Bastrop Building 
Block (B3) Code for Bastrop Grove Section 5 (previously called Section 2) Proposed 
Preliminary Plat, being 25.9 acres out of the Nancy Blakey Survey, Abstract 98, located 
east of SH 304 in the 600 Block west of SH 71, within the city limits of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas. 

Trey Job presented to the Board an appeal of a Grandfathered Development Status 
Determination and request for a variance to be exempt from the Bastrop Building Block (B3) Code 
for Bastrop Grove Section 5.  



Zoning Board of Adjustments 
October 6, 2021 Meeting Minutes 

 

Zoning Board of Adjustments Minutes  October 6, 2021 Page 2 of 4 
 

Trey Job stated Staffs contention on this matter is the applicant did not meet the requirements 
to continue moving forward in the two-year timeframe as required in Chapter 245. 
 
He stated the Applicant was requesting to repeal the City Manager’s determination to uphold 
Staff’s recommendation for the Grandfathering date to be January 22, 2019. There request is to 
remand back to the City manager for reconsideration.  
 
Trey Job stated the Zoning Board of Adjustment would need to determine at this time did the 
City Manager make a mistake regarding the Grandfathered development status, and if so the 
Zoning Board of Adjustment could remand the matter back to the City Manager to re-evaluate; 
or the Zoning Board of Adjustment could determine to issue a ruling regarding the 
Grandfathering status at this time. Jennifer Bills stated furthermore, the applicant was 
requesting the Zoning Board of Adjustment entertain the request to a variance from the B3 
Code for the development if the Grandfathering Appeal was going to be denied by the Zoning 
Board of Adjustment. 
  
Douglas McMahan, an owner of the Bastrop Grove Project, read aloud a letter for the record.  

Brenden McEntee, CBD Engineer spoke about the exemption process in relation to the project.  

The Zoning Board of Adjustment convened into closed executive session at 6:38 p.m. 
 
The Zoning Board of Adjustment adjourned from their closed executive session and reconvened 
into their meeting at 7:57 p.m. 
 
Discussion commenced between Board members, staff and the applicant that included the 
following topics: 

1. The merit January 28, 2019 email from Jennifer Bills regarding the exemption and 
preliminary plat status.   

2. What the outcome for the project would be if the Board recommended to grant the 
Grandfathering request for the project to be vested to the January 22, 2019 subdivision 
ordinance. 

 
The Zoning Board of Adjustment convened into closed executive session at 8:17 p.m. 
 
The Zoning Board of Adjustment adjourned from their closed executive session and reconvened 
into their meeting at 8:51 p.m. 
  
Richard Smarzik made a motion to reverse the City Managers determination and to set the 
grandfathering date back to January 22, 2019. Gary Moss seconded the motion and the motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
Doug McMahon asked the board for clarity on if the motion granted meant the project would go 
back to the city manager for a zoning determination? Scot Robichaud stated the applicant would 
be required to follow all of the currently adopted zoning processes and requirements.  
 



Zoning Board of Adjustments 
October 6, 2021 Meeting Minutes 

 

Zoning Board of Adjustments Minutes  October 6, 2021 Page 3 of 4 
 

4.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Gary Moss made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:53 pm. Jeff Haladyna seconded the motion 
and the motion carried unanimously.  

_______________________ 
Chair 
 
_______________________ 
Vice-Chair 



Page 1 of 5 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

 
MEETING DATE:  March 23, 2022                       Item: 3B 
      
TITLE:  
Public hearing and consider action on variances from the Bastrop Building Block (B³) Code, 
Chapter 8 – Signs, Article 8.3 (L) Pylon Signs for the number of signs, sign height, sign width, and 
expansion of the existing non-conforming internally illuminated pole sign on Bastrop West 
Commercial, Section 2, Lot 2A Resubdivision, located at 460 State Highway 71, within the City 
Limits of the City of Bastrop, Texas. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Allison Land, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address:   460 Highway 71 West (Attachment 1) 
Total Acreage:   0.51 acres 
Legal Description:  Bastrop West Commercial, Section 2, Lot 2A 
  
Property Owner/Applicant: Steve Durso, Steve Durso Properties 
 
Existing Use:   Retail/Commercial 
Existing Zoning:  P5 Core 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY:  
The Applicant requested a variance in 2017 that was approved by the Zoning Board of 
Adjustments (Attachment 4). Signs were never installed, and the approval expired. The applicant 
is requesting what was approved in 2017, which is to add additional signage of four feet tall by 23 
feet wide below the existing Game Stop/T-Mobile sign along the Highway 71 eastbound frontage 
road (in front of Walmart). The building has been reconfigured from one tenant space to four 
tenant spaces, each of which would like pylon signage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 

Existing 
Sign 



Page 2 of 5 
 

The Applicant is asking to place the new sign area in the open space directly below the existing 
sign, removing the existing satellite. 
 
Proposed Sign: 

 
A sign inventory completed in 2005 by the Planning staff shows only the existing sign area and 
there is no indication or record that there was ever more sign area. Photo taken June 3, 2005. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 5 
 

 
Per B³ Code Sec. 8.3 L, Pylon Signs, one pylon sign is allowed per frontage. This property has 
one frontage. The max height is 35 feet. This existing sign is 60 feet tall. At 35 feet tall, the max 
sign width is 8.75, which is calculated as being a 4:1 ratio. At 60 feet tall, the ratio provides for 
a sign width of 15 feet. The existing sign is 35 feet wide, and the proposed signage is 23 feet 
wide to fit between the two poles. The Code also requires a two-foot stone, stucco, brick, or 
wood base to enclose each pole. The existing sign does not have this as it was not a 
requirement at the time of original construction. The building is being divided up into more tenant 
spaces than had previously existed. The existing sign was designed to serve only one or two 
tenants. The property owner’s action of making new tenant spaces without dividing up the 
existing sign is driving the desire for additional signs. 
 

Summary of Request 
 

 

Height 
(feet) 

% over 
max. 

allowed 

Sign 
Dimensions 

(feet) 

Allowed 
Sign 

Width at a 
4:1 Ratio 

(feet) 

% over 
max. 

allowed 

% 
increase 

from 
existing 

Pylon Sign 
Requirements  
(Sec. 8.3 L) 35     8.75     

Existing Sign             
Total  Pylon Sign Size 60 71% 8 x 35 15 71%   

Proposed Sign             
Additional Signage  52 49% 4 x 23 13  49%   

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
Six (6) adjacent property owner notifications were mailed on March 11, 2022. At the time of this 
report, no responses have been received. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The Zoning Board of Adjustment may decide, subject to appropriate conditions, and only after 
a finding based on the evidence presented that strict compliance with the requirements of this 
Code will result in substantial undue hardship, sufficient mitigation, or inequity to the applicant 
without sufficient corresponding benefit to the City and its citizens in accomplishing the 
objectives of this Chapter In order to grant a variance from these zoning regulations, the Board 
of Adjustments must make written findings that undue hardship exists, using the following 
criteria: 

 
(1) Special or unique hardship because of the size or shape of the property on which 

the Sign is to be located, or the visibility of the property from public roads. 
 

The property is located on a pad site in front of Wal-Mart, directly on the SH 71 
eastbound frontage road. The wall signs on the building are visible from both the 
frontage road and the elevated main lanes. (Attachment 5) 
 

(2) Hardship claim based on the exceptional topographic conditions or physical 
features uniquely affecting the property on which a Sign is to be located.  
 



Page 4 of 5 
 

The site does not have any unique topographic conditions or physical features that 
are not experienced by property with frontage along SH 71 west of the river. 

 
(3) Proposed Sign location, configuration, design, materials, and colors are 

harmonious. 
 

The sign is existing and requesting expansion between the existing poles, at a 
height that is greater than the allowed 35 feet. The City does not regulate color. 
 

(4) The Sign and its supporting structure are in architectural harmony with the 
surrounding Structures.  
 
The Code requires a two-foot stone, stucco, brick, or wood base to enclose each 
pole. The existing sign does not have this as it was not a requirement at the time 
of original construction. This, combined with the overall scale of the sign, are not 
in harmony with its surroundings. 
 

(5) Mitigation measures related to the Sign in question or other Signs on the same 
Premises. 

 
No mitigation measures are proposed. The applicant is proposing additional pylon 
and band/wall signage for the increased number of tenants. 
 

(6) Demonstrated and documented correlation between the Variance and protecting 
the public health and safety. 
 
Extremely large signs create more visual stimuli and clutters the field of vision. 
The large poles are awkward and obtrusive on site. 
 

(7) Whether the Sign could have been included in a Master Sign Plan. Master Sign 
plans are highly encouraged. The City will be more inclined to favorably consider 
a Variance request when the Variance is part of a Master Sign Plan. There will be 
a presumption against granting variances piecemeal, ad hoc, on a case-by-case 
basis when the Sign for which a Variance is sought could have been included in a 
Master Sign Plan and considered in the course of a comprehensive review of the 
entire Project’s signage. 
 
A Master Sign Plan has been submitted, but additional Pylon signs could not be 
approved with that sign plan. 
 

(8) The Sign Administrator may authorize the remodeling, renovation, or alteration of 
a Sign when some nonconforming aspect of the Sign is thereby reduced. 
 
The overall height, width, and number of existing signs are non-conforming and 
not proposed to be reduced, plus additional signage is proposed. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Hold public hearing and consider action on variances from the Bastrop Building Block (B³) Code, 
Chapter 8 – Signs, Article 8.3 (L) Pylon Signs for the number of signs, sign height, sign width, and 
expansion of the existing non-conforming internally illuminated pole sign on Bastrop West 



Page 5 of 5 
 

Commercial, Section 2, Lot 2A Resubdivision, located at 460 State Highway 71, within the City 
Limits of the City of Bastrop, Texas. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1: Location Map 
Attachment 2: Letter from Applicant 
Attachment 3: Notice to Property Owners 
Attachment 4: 2017 Record of Action 
Attachment 5: Pictures from Roadway 



SH 71

SH 71

SH 71
SH 71

R26372

R75204

R75203

R81580

R78372

R60415
R38256

R34712

R92292

R60416

Location Map
Bastrop West Commercial 

Section 2, Lot 2A ³
Date: 5/25/2017

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     

0 60 12030
Feet

1 inch = 75 feet

HI
LLPECAN

WATER

PINE

SPRING

JESSICA

JEFFERSON

BEECH

PE
RK

IN
S

AUSTIN

EMILE

WALNUT

CHURCH

HASLER
AGNES

SC
HA

EF
ER

LO
VE

RS

OLD AUSTIN

N H
AS

LE
R

MAYNARD

COLLEGE

WILLOW

W
ILSON

FARM

ES
KE

W

CH
IL

DE
RS

HA
SL

ER
 SH

OR
ES

ALLEY A

JONES
S H

AS
LE

R

MAINHOSPITAL

HEADWATERS

ALLEY B

JASPER

SM
ITH

OR
CH

AR
D

MARIE

PERKINS COLLEGE

¬«71

Legend
Parcel of Concern
Parcels







 

P L A N N I N G  D E P A R T M E N T  
1311 Chestnut  St reet  ●  PO Box 427 ●  Bast rop,  Texas 78602 ●  512.332.8840 ●  

www.c i tyo fbas trop.org  

 

Notice of Public Hearing 
City of Bastrop 
Zoning Board of Adjustment 
 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
The Zoning Board of Adjustment will conduct a public hearing on Wednesday, March 23, 2022 at 3:00 
p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas on the 
following request:  
 
Public Hearing and consider action on variances from the Bastrop Building Block (B³) Code, Chapter 8 – 
Signs, Article 8.3 (L) Pylon Signs for the number of signs, sign height, sign width, and continued use of the 
existing non-conforming internally illuminated pole sign on Bastrop West Commercial, Section 2, Lot 2A 
Resubdivision, located at 460 State Highway 71, within the City Limits of the City of Bastrop, Texas. 
 
Applicant/Owner: Steve Durso Properties LLC 
Address:  460 W SH 71 
Legal Description: Bastrop West Commercial Sec 2, Lot 2 A (RESUB of Lot 2), Acres 

0.5100 
 

The site location map and a letter from the property owner is attached for reference. 

As a property owner within 200 feet of the above referenced property, you are being notified of the upcoming 
meetings per the Bastrop Code of Ordinances.  For more information or to provide comments on this project, 
you may contact the Planning & Development Department at (512) 332-8840, plan@cityofbastrop.org, visit 
the office at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas, or mail the response card below to PO Box 427, Bastrop, 
Texas 78602. The agenda will be posted 72 hours in advance at: 

https://www.cityofbastrop.org/page/cs.board_agendas. 

 
PROPERTY OWNER’S RESPONSE  
As a property owner within 200 feet: (please check one) 

☐ I am in favor of the request. 
☐ I am opposed to the request. 
☐ I have no objection to the request.  

Property Owner Name:             
 
Property Address:            
  
Mailing Address (if different than property address:        
   
Phone (optional):      Email (optional):       
 
Property Owner’s Signature: ___________________________ 
 
Additional Comments (Optional): 
 
              
 
              
 
Re: 22-000102 - Sign Variance 

https://www.cityofbastrop.org/page/cs.board_agendas






SH 71

SH 71

SH 71
SH 71

R26372

R75204

R75203

R81580

R78372

R60415
R38256

R34712

R92292

R60416

Location Map
Bastrop West Commercial 

Section 2, Lot 2A ³
Date: 5/25/2017

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     

0 60 12030
Feet

1 inch = 75 feet

HI
LLPECAN

WATER

PINE

SPRING

JESSICA

JEFFERSON

BEECH

PE
RK

IN
S

AUSTIN

EMILE

WALNUT

CHURCH

HASLER
AGNES

SC
HA

EF
ER

LO
VE

RS

OLD AUSTIN

N H
AS

LE
R

MAYNARD

COLLEGE

WILLOW

W
ILSON

FARM

ES
KE

W

CH
IL

DE
RS

HA
SL

ER
 SH

OR
ES

ALLEY A

JONES
S H

AS
LE

R

MAINHOSPITAL

HEADWATERS

ALLEY B

JASPER

SM
ITH

OR
CH

AR
D

MARIE

PERKINS COLLEGE

¬«71

Legend
Parcel of Concern
Parcels
































	_03-00-2022  ZBA Meeting Agenda_signed
	3A - October 6, 2021 meeting minutes
	3B - Sign Variance
	1 - 460 SH 71 Variance Staff Report
	Attachment 1 - Location Map
	Attachment 2 - Project Description Letter
	Attachment 3 - Notice to Property Owners
	Attachment 3 - Notice to Property Owners.pdf
	Notice of Public Hearing
	City of Bastrop
	Zoning Board of Adjustment

	Applicant Letter and Location Map.pdf
	BastropVarianceLetter
	20170525-Steve Durso Properties-R75203-ZBA aka BOA variance


	Attachment 4 - 2017 Record of Action
	Attachment 5 - Pictures from Roadway
	17103_BastropScholtsky
	17104_BastropAarons
	17105_BastropWalmart
	17106_BastropWalmart2
	17107_BastropWalmart3
	17108_BastropInterior
	17109_BastropInterior2
	17110_BastropInterior3
	17111_BastropInterior4
	17112_Bastrop71
	17113_BastropAccess
	17114_BastropAccess2



